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Advanced Clinical Practice Fellowship Program
2015-2016
Proposal Application Template
Please see the official Request for Proposal document for program information, application instructions, and evaluation criteria.
Request for Proposals Issued: Monday, November 3, 2014
Deadline to Notify RNAO of Intention to Submit a Proposal: January 9, 2015
Deadline for Submissions: January 16, 2015 (BOTH an electronic copy and four paper copies must be received by RNAO Office by 3 pm ET; emailed proposals will NOT be accepted)

Results released to Applicants: March 16, 2015
Fellowships to occur any time during the period of April 20, 2015 – February 1st, 2016
Components of the Proposal 

A Complete Proposal package includes FOUR paper copies and ONE electronic copy (included with hard copies in the form of CD, DVD or USB memory stick) of the following:

1. Applicant Declaration 

2. Demographic Survey Sheet

3. Fellowship Contact Title Page

4. Abstract

5. Response to Proposal Discussion Questions

6. Projected Budget

7. Learning Plan

8. Letters of Support from individual(s) in the following positions

i. Fellow’s Senior Manager (Appendix 2)

ii. Fellow’s Direct Manager (Appendix 2)

iii. Fellow’s Primary Mentor (Appendix 4)

iv. Primary Mentor’s Manager (Appendix 5)

9. Resume or Curriculum Vitae (condensed to no more than 4 pages per person) from:

i. Fellow (Appendix 1)

ii. Primary Mentor (Appendix 3)

iii. Mentoring Team Members (if applicable) (Appendix 3)

Submission Instructions

All Applicants who intend to submit a proposal must notify RNAO no later than January 9, 2015. This information is used by RNAO to prepare for the Review Process; it is not binding and can be modified or withdrawn at any time. To notify RNAO of your intention to submit a proposal, please visit https://survey.rnao.ca/ACPFIntenttoSubmitProposal_January2015 and provide: 
· Name of the Fellow

· Email address of the Fellow

· Name and location of the Sponsoring Organization

· Skill Development Stream (Clinical, Leadership or Guideline Implementation)

· Language in which your proposal will be submitted (English or French)

NOTE: All proposals must be RECEIVED by RNAO no later than 3 pm ET on January 16, 2015. Complete proposal packages (see above) should be sent to: 

Advanced Clinical Practice Fellowship Program

Registered Nurses’ Association of Ontario

158 Pearl Street, Toronto, ON  M5H 1L3

Attention: Erica D’Souza     
NOTE: Emailed proposals will NOT be accepted.

All applicants will receive notification by email that their proposal has been received no later than one business day following the submission deadline. If you do not receive notification, contact Erica D’Souza at 416-599-1925 or 1-800-268-7199 x241.
Advanced Clinical Practice Fellowship 
Demographic Survey Sheet

Please fill out this information sheet; your responses will have no bearing on your proposal valuation and are used for statistical reporting purposes only.
Name of applicant: _________________________________

	[image: image3.jpg]Please check your highest level of education:

     Diploma                Baccalaureate degree                  Masters degree                   PhD        

	Please check your employment status at your Sponsor Organization

     Full-time                  Part-time                  Casual    

	Please check the number of years’ experience in Nursing:

     1-2 years           3-5 years            6-10 years            11-15 years            16-25 years           >25 years

	Please indicate which of categories your proposal is focused in:

    Clinical   

     Best Practice Guideline Implementation (Title of Guideline ____________________________ )

     Leadership – Education                Leadership – Policy          Leadership – Research   

                            Leadership – Management/Administration

	Please indicate which of the following speciality areas will apply to your fellowship.  Check as many as apply, but also circle just one main speciality area:
    Antenatal / Post-partum                 Cardiac Care               Critical Care             Diabetes

    Dialysis                           Emergency/Trauma                      Gerontology             Health Promotion 

    Infection Control          Knowledge transfer / Guideline implementation           Medical Surgical

    Neonatal                        Neurology             Oncology                               Operating Room

    Paediatrics                     Pain                        Palliative Care                      Psychiatric/Mental Health

    Rehabilitation               Wound Care          Other: 

	Please indicate which one of the following categories best applies to your Sponsor Organization:

     Ambulatory Care            Acute Care Hospital                  CHC              Complex Continuing Care       

    Long-Term Care         Psychiatric Hospital / Mental Health           Public Health         Rehabilitation

     Visiting Nurse / home care / CCAC                 Other: 

	How did you first learn about the Advanced Clinical/Practice Fellowships? (check only one)
     RNAO Website                     RN Journal                  Word of mouth              Posting in Organization

     Newsletter (organization/group title)_________________________

     Other (please specify): 

	Are you an RNAO Member*?     (  Yes              (  No
Is your sponsoring organization a Best Practice Spotlight Organization**?  (  Yes              (  No
* Please note: You do not have to be an RNAO Member to be eligible for this Fellowship.
** Please note: You do not have to be a Best Practice Spotlight Organization to be eligible for this Fellowship.


Advanced Clinical Practice Fellowship Applicant Declaration
Please initial beside each item to indicate that your submission meets the following mandatory requirements.  This Declaration MUST be completed and submitted with your proposal in order for your proposal to be reviewed. 
	Mandatory Requirements

	· Applicant has contacted RNAO to notify ACPF Staff of “Intent to Submit a Proposal” no later than January 9th, 2015.
· The proposal conforms to the required format and length (insert responses directly into RFP template). 

· The applicant has a minimum of one year of work experience as an RN, and lives/works in Ontario.

· The Primary Mentor is a registered nurse and has completed a Master’s Degree. 

· Fellowship is set to begin no earlier than April 20, 2015 and will be completed no later than February 1, 2016.

· Full contact details for each participant (applicant, primary mentor, direct manager, senior manager and mentoring team member(s)) are listed on the Title Page of the Proposal, including an email address and address with office phone number where applicable.

· Budget contains a detailed breakdown of costs, and includes a minimum contribution of $5000 from the Sponsoring Organization. All items described as “In Kind” contributions have been assigned a dollar value. 

·  A statement describing the approach the applicant has taken for investigating Ethics Approval at the Sponsor Organization is included in the proposal discussion questions (Section 3: Organizational Supports).

· A statement indicating whether or not Ethics Approval will be required is contained in BOTH the proposal body (Section 3: Organizational Supports) AND the Senior Manager’s Letter of Support.

· Direct Manager’s Letter of Support contains a statement indicating that the applicant will be released from regular duties and given protected time for Fellowship work.

· The following are included as appendices :

· Letter of Support from the Fellow’s Direct Manager*

· Letter of Support from the Fellow’s Senior Manager*

· Letter of Support from the Primary Mentor*

· Letter of Support from the Primary Mentor’s Manager*

· Fellow’s Resume/CV (max. 4 pages)

· Resume/CV for EACH mentor (Primary Mentor AND Mentoring Team Members, if using a mentoring team) – maximum of 4 pages each.

*NOTE: if an individual is fulfilling more than one role (ie Direct Manager and Primary Mentor, or Fellow’s Senior Manager and Primary Mentor’s Manager), one letter may be submitted that addresses the requirements for both roles.



	Applicant’s’ Signature:                    _______________________________________

Applicant’s Name (please print):  _______________________________________ 

Date :                                                  _______________________________________


Advanced Clinical Practice Fellowship Proposal Title Page
Title of your ACPF Fellowship Experience 
Skill Development Stream: Clinical, Leadership (indicate sub-stream – Education, Management, Research, Policy) or Guideline Implementation

Anticipated start and end dates for this fellowship.  Please note that for this cycle of fellowships, applicants must propose a fellowship start date no earlier than April 20th, 2015 and an end date no later than February 1st, 2016.

Name of ACPF Candidate/Fellow

Full name, credentials and title.

Applicant’s mailing address, phone, fax, email address.

Sponsor Organization Contact #1 – Senior Manager

Full name, credentials and title.

Full mailing address including office locations, phone, fax and e-mail address

(This individual has written one letter of support, has signing authority for the contract on behalf of the organization, and is accountable for ensuring that the terms of the contract are adhered to.)

Sponsor Organization Contact #2 – Direct Manager

Full name, credentials and title.

Full mailing address, phone and fax numbers, office locations and e-mail address

(This individual has written the second letter of support for this fellowship proposal.)

ACPF Primary Mentor

Full name, credentials and title.

Mentor’s Sponsor Organization (employer), full mailing address, office location,

phone and fax numbers and e-mail address.

(Two letters of support must be provided by the primary mentor: one from the mentor indicating support for the fellow and fellowship activities; another from the mentor’s employer indicating support for the mentor’s activities during the fellowship.)

ACPF Mentoring Team Members

If applicable, additional members of the ACPF Mentoring Team, credentials and titles.

Full mailing addresses, office locations, phone and fax numbers and e-mail addresses.

Date submitted 

Abstract  (recommended word limit: 300 words)
Accounts for 3% of total evaluation score
· See Request for Proposal document (page 19) for details to be included in the abstract).
[Please insert your response here]
Proposal Discussion Questions 

Section One Proposal Questions: Candidate’s Profile 

Accounts for 2% of total evaluation score
1. Name and credentials (credentials include RN status, degrees and certifications held).

[Please insert your response here]

2. Contact information: Full mailing address (including office and building number if applicable), telephone and fax numbers, e-mail address, etc.)  

[Please insert your response here]

3. Registration number with the College of Nurses of Ontario, and the number of years experience as a registered nurse.

[Please insert your response here]

4. Please provide highlights of your resume which are relevant to this application.  A current resume or CV of no more than 4 pages, which includes education, experience, professional development, professional activities, research, presentations, conferences attendance and professional affiliations should be attached as Appendix 1 at the end of the proposal.   

[Please insert your response here]

Section Two Proposal Questions: Establishing the Need for the Fellowship 
Accounts for 19% of total evaluation score

Need for Learning 

1. Please choose one skill development stream (Clinical, Leadership or Guideline Implementation) and describe the specific knowledge, skills and expertise you hope to develop through this fellowship. 
[Please insert your response here]

2. Describe the link between Fellow’s current role/practice/project and the learning need. What is the potential impact of this learning on the Fellow’s role/practice/project?
[Please insert your response here]

3. What is the potential impact of this learning on colleagues or other staff in the practice setting or area?
[Please insert your response here]

Need for the Fellowship Initiative

4. Describe the need or gap in service for this project at the Sponsoring Organization.  Why has this specific project or approach been chosen?  Include a description of the gap in practice or service that you hope to address through the fellowship.
[Please insert your response here]

5. Identify and describe the client/patient population to be affected.  
[Please insert your response here]
6. What potential client/patient, nurse and/or organizational outcomes will be measured to evaluate the success of this fellowship?
[Please insert your response here]

Section Three Proposal Questions: Organizational Supports
Accounts for 18% of total evaluation score

1. Describe how your fellowship relates to any past, current or future initiatives or strategic plans at your organization. For example, what previous work has been done in this area? What future work is necessary/anticipated?
[Please insert your response here]

2. How have you engaged your Manager(s) in identifying and defining the fellowship focus, and in the development of this proposal?  How will your Manager be involved throughout your fellowship experience?
[Please insert your response here]

3. How will your organization support you in applying the knowledge you gain through the fellowship experience? 
[Please insert your response here]

4. How will your organization support you in sharing and disseminating the knowledge you gain through the fellowship experience?
[Please insert your response here]

5. What strategies have you identified to support sustainability? Discuss both how you as a fellow will sustain your knowledge and skills post-fellowship, and how the organization will support you to sustain the outcomes and impact of the fellowship within your organization?
[Please insert your response here]

6. a) Describe the process for determining if ethics review is required for your fellowship at  your organization
(Please note the Ethics Review Board should be consulted to determine whether or not a specific activity requires ethics review. In instances where fellowships are focused on quality assurance activities it is important to describe the process for ethics review at your organization and why ethics review will not be required.)
[Please insert your response here]

b) Will this fellowship require an Ethics Review process? If so, what plans have you made to ensure adequate time and review?
[Please insert your response here]

7. Attach two letters of support from the Sponsoring Organization, one from the Fellow’s Direct Manager (responsible for supervising regular practice and activities) and one from the Fellow’s Senior Manager (responsible for providing strategic direction to the fellow’s practice area, and has signing authority for the Organization). Mark these as Appendix 2.
Section Four Proposal Questions: Mentoring Supports 
Accounts for 14% of total evaluation score

Please provide a response for each of the following questions for your primary mentor.  If using a mentoring team, please provide a response for questions 1 – 5 below for all members of your mentoring team. 
1. Name, Credentials and Professional Affiliation. 
[Please insert your response here]
2. What is the role of this person in your fellowship? (ie Primary Mentor, Mentoring Team Member, etc)
[Please insert your response here]

3. What background and expertise will this individual(s) contribute to the fellowship?
[Please insert your response here]
4. What strategies will you use to engage with your mentor(s)? In what activities or areas will this person/people support you in achieving your learning objectives?
[Please insert your response here]

5. What strategies or methods will you use to communicate your progress and activities between your team members (yourself, your manager(s), your mentor(s)?
[Please insert your response here]
6. Please attach a resume or curriculum vitae (condensed to no more than 4 pages) for your Mentor. If using a Mentoring Team approach, please attach a resume or curriculum vitae for each Mentor. Mark these as Appendix 3.
7. Please attach a letter of support from the Primary Mentor, detailing their support for involvement in this fellowship. Note: If using a Mentoring team, only the Primary Mentor must provide a letter of support. Please mark this as Appendix 4.
8. Please attach a letter of support from the Primary Mentor’s Manager or Sponsoring Organization indicating support for their involvement in the fellowship experience. Please mark this as Appendix 5.

Proposed Budget
Accounts for 4% of total evaluation score

The fellowship budget must cover all costs associated with the fellowship, and capture the full contribution of all parties to the fellowship, as outlined in the budget template. 

1. Identify all financial costs and material resources needed for the fellowship, ensuring that all activities described in the proposal and learning plan have been considered.

a. Material Resources can include in-kind contributions from the Sponsor Organization: In-kind contributions are defined as resources made available by the Sponsor Organization for which no direct cost will be incurred. Examples include time with managers or other staff, library subscriptions, use of equipment or technology, printing and photocopying, telephone or videoconference charges. NOTE: ALL in-kind costs must be assigned an estimated dollar value, but noted as in-kind. 

2. Fill out the budget template as fully and completely as possible, adding lines and detail where needed.

3. Insert the total cost for the activity, resource or item in the first column marked “Total Anticipated Cost”. Provide a brief description or note which activity is associated in the final column marked “Description of costs”. 

4. Under the columns marked “Funding Source”, please break down the portion of the expense that will be covered by RNAO funding (maximum $13,000), the portion of the expense that will be covered by Sponsor Organization contribution, Please note restrictions on funding sources, as identified by the shaded areas.

[Please insert your response on the chart on the next page]

	Budget Items
	Total Anticipated Cost*
	

	
	
	RNAO Contribution

(maximum $13,000)
	Sponsor Organization

Contribution 

(minimum $5000)
	Description of Costs

	
	Insert total cost here
	Insert the portion of the cost that will be funded by RNAO contribution
	Insert the portion of the cost that will be funded by the Sponsor Organization Contribution.

NOTE: All in-kind costs must be assigned a dollar value, but clearly marked as in-kind.
	Briefly describe the learning activity, item, event or resource for which each cost is associated with

	Fellow’s Salary
	
	
	
	

	Fellow’s Benefits
	
	
	
	

	Management Support 

(time, evaluation, etc.)
	
	
	
	

	Administration & 

Secretarial Support
	
	
	
	

	Communication
	
	
	
	

	Library Services
	
	
	
	

	Printing costs 

(handouts, resource books, etc.)
	
	
	
	

	Conference Attendance
	
	
	
	

	Dissemination of newly acquired knowledge (eg: in-services/ educational materials, etc.)
	
	
	
	

	Education
	
	
	
	

	Training for replacement staff
	
	
	
	

	Parking
	
	
	
	

	Travel (air, bus, train, mileage, etc.)
	
	
	
	

	Accommodations
	
	
	
	

	Meals
	
	
	
	

	Miscellaneous (provide details)
	
	
	
	

	Totals
	
	
	
	


Learning Plan 

Accounts for 40% of total evaluation score


1. State your overall learning goal at the top of the chart.  While constructing your goal, please bear in mind that the aim of the Advanced Clinical/Practice Fellowship program is to provide nurses with an educational growth opportunity. Your goal should be framed as a learning goal which is accomplished through the specific activities you are proposing. 
2. Identify specific, concrete and measurable learning objectives that outline the skills or knowledge things you need to learn in order to meet your learning goal. 

3. Identify and describe one or more strategies you will use or resources you will consult in order to meet your learning objective. Include a description of the role your mentor(s), managers, key informants or colleagues will play in assisting you with the activity or strategy, if applicable.

4. Identify specific, concrete and measurable ways that you can demonstrate that you have achieved your learning objective. This can include (but is not limited to) demonstration of skills, production of materials or other deliverables, completion of a particular program, assessment or set of requirements.

5. Provide a timeline on the major learning activities to be undertaken during the fellowship experience (450 hours/ 12 or 20-24 weeks).  Provide anticipated start and end dates, and ensure all fellowship activities and learnings begin no earlier than April 20, 2015  and are scheduled for completion no later than February 1, 2016. It is recommended that some learning activities be scheduled outside of the sponsor organisation (e.g. site visits, mentor meetings). Be sure to account for any holidays, vacation or other projects which may prevent you or your mentor from working on the fellowship.

6. Describe how you will evaluate your success in meeting your Learning Objective. Identify concrete, specific and measurable criteria that you can use to determine how well you have learned the skills or knowledge described in the Learning Objective. Include a description of the role your mentor(s), managers, key informants, colleagues, or others will play in assist with your evaluation, and describe any measures for self-evaluation. 
	Overall Goal for Learning: The overall goal for learning should appear at the top of the learning plan chart, and should describe the broad expertise or learning that will be developed by the fellow through carrying out the fellowship. The goal should reflect a focus on the fellow’s learning rather than the fellowship project, and be identical to the goal provided in the Abstract. 

	Learning Objectives
	Strategies or Resources

	Outcomes Demonstrating  Achievement
	Target Dates
	Criteria for Evaluating Success
	Progress/ Status

	What are the specific skills or knowledge  you intend to learn in order to meet your learning goal? Objectives should be specific, measurable, attainable, realistic and timely. Objectives should include the content to be learned in relation to the knowledge, skill, and attitudes that are desired.

Learning objectives should be focused on the learning needs of the fellow.
	These are the activities that you will use to meet your objectives.

(How will you do it?)
Identify the role that any mentors, managers or others will play in assisting with your strategies/learning activities if applicable
	How do you propose to demonstrate achievement of this objective?  What are the specific outcomes of your work? What deliverables will you produce?
E.g. “As a result of the meeting this objective, I will …”

(How will you know that you have achieved it?)
	When are the outcomes due?

Number of weeks & completion date.


	Describe how you will assess or evaluate how well you addressed your Learning Objective. What criteria can be used to evaluate your success in achieved or completing the Learning Objective? All criteria should be concrete and measurable.
Who will help you evaluate (mentor(s), colleagues, manager) and what method will be used to evaluate each objective?

(Name who or how you will obtain feedback or information to demonstrate that you have achieved your objective)
	Description of where Fellow is in relation to meeting the stated objective.  This section should be tracked on an ongoing basis and completed at the end of the fellowship experience. 

(Dates will be specified on the contract that will be provided should the fellow be selected.  This should be a blank column in the proposal) 

	Insert additional lines for each objective as needed. 
	Ensure that the information contained in each of these columns directly connects back to the specified learning objective.

	Overall Goal for Learning:  [Insert your Overall Learning Goal here}


	Learning Objectives
	Strategies or Resources


	Outcomes Demonstrating  Achievement
	Target Dates
	Criteria for Evaluating Success
	Progress/ Status

	[Insert Learning Objective #1 here]
	[Insert Strategies you will use to meet your learning objective here]
	[Insert Outcomes that can Demonstrate that you have achieved Learning Objective #1 here]
	[Insert a projected date or timeline associated with the Strategy or Outcome here]

	[Insert Criteria you have identified that can measure your success in meeting Learning Objective #1]
	[Leave this column blank – to be filled out during the fellowship]

	[Insert Learning Objective #2 here, and so on]
	
	
	
	
	

	[Insert Learning Objective #3 here, and so on]
	


Appendix 1 – Fellow’s Resume or CV
[insert your response behind this page]

Appendix 2 – Sponsor Organization Letters of Support
[Insert your response behind this page]

Appendix 3 – Primary Mentor and Mentoring Team Resume(s) or CV(s)
[Insert your response behind this page]

Appendix 4 – Primary Mentor’s Letter of Support

[Insert your response behind this page]

Appendix 5 – Letter of Support from Primary Mentor’s Manager/Organization
[Insert your response behind this page]
Complete the Learning Plan Chart fully and in detail using the blank version of the Learning Plan chart.  Your learning plan should be developed in partnership with your Mentor(s) and with substantial feedback from your Sponsor Organization.








